
 

 
 
Notice of meeting of  
 
Decision Session - Executive Member for Health & Adult Social 

Services 
 
To: Councillor Morley (Executive Member) 

 
Date: Tuesday, 27 July 2010 

 
Time: 4.00 pm 

 
Venue: Guildhall 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
Notice to Members – Calling In 
  
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item on this agenda, 
notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by: 
  
10.00 am on Monday 26 July 2010 if an item is called in before a decision is 
taken, or 
  
4.00pm on Thursday 29 July 2010 if an item is called in after a decision has 
been taken. 
  
Items called in will be considered by the Scrutiny Management Committee.  
  
 
Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be 
submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00pm on Friday 23 July 2010. 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or 

prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this 
agenda. 
 



 
 
2. Minutes   (Pages 3 - 

6) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 

27 April 2010. 
 

3. Public Participation - Decision Session    
   

At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 
registered their wish to speak at the meeting can do so. The 
deadline for registering is 5:00pm on  Monday 26 July 2010.                

  
Members of the public may register to speak on:-  

• an item on the agenda;  
• an issue within the Executive Member’s remit;  
• an item that has been published on the Information Log since 

the last session.  Information reports are listed at the end of 
the agenda.  

  
 

4. A Joint Vision for Older People's Health and 
Well Being in York 2010-2015   

(Pages 7 - 
22) 

 This paper seeks the Executive Member’s agreement to a joint 
vision for health and social care services in York for older people.  
 

5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the  

Local Government Act 1972 
 

Information Reports 
No information reports have been published on the Information Log for 
this session. 
 



 
 
Democracy Officers 
 
Catherine Clarke and Louise Cook (job share)  
Contact details:  

• Telephone – (01904) 551031 
• Email catherine.clarke@york.gov.uk and 

louise.cook@york.gov.uk 
(If contacting by email, please send to both Democracy officers 
named above). 

 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

 
Contact details are set out above.  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (38 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Decision Session) agenda. The 
Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date and will 
set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 

necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

MEETING DECISION SESSION - EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR 
HEALTH & ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES 

DATE 27 APRIL 2010 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS MORLEY (EXECUTIVE MEMBER) 

IN ATTENDANCE CLLR SIMPSON - LAING 

 
22. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
The Executive Member was invited to declare at this point in the meeting 
any personal or prejudical interests he might have in the business on the 
agenda.  No interests were declared. 
  

23. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting of the Decision 

Session – Executive Member for Housing and Adult 
Social Services held on 23 March 2010 be approved 
and signed by the Executive Member as a correct 
record. 

 
 

24. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - DECISION SESSION  
 
It was reported that there had been one registration to speak at the 
meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 
Representations were received from Councillor Simpson-Laing  regarding 
agenda items 2, 4, 5 and 6 as follows: 
 

• Item 2 Minutes – Councillor Simpson-Laing asked that it be made 
clear that she had not requested a Scrutiny Review on the matter  of 
performance and the collection of rents. She had requested further 
information to assist her in understanding the problem. 

• Item 4 – It was queried whether residents and carer groups been 
consulted on the change as she felt it was important the changes 
were fully understood prior to take up. 

• Item 5 – She was glad to see the move towards providing home 
cooked meals as evidence shows freshly prepared food is better 
nutritionally. 

• Welcomed the new procedures and is glad that an extra Officer is 
being employed to implement the procedure.  

• Welcomed Pete Dwyer as the new Director. 
 
Councillor Simpson-Laing left the meeting. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2Page 3



 
25. CYC HOME CARE - KEYLESS PROPOSAL  

 
The Executive Member considered a report which sought approval for the 
implementation of a policy to discontinue the holding of customers keys in 
the Council’s in house Home Care Services.  
 
Officers outlined the paper which highlighted the following issues: 
 

• The current position and the issues surrounding key-holding. 
• The desired position and the proposal to extend current policy for 

new customers to existing customers to become non key-holding. 
• The implications for existing customers – customers would have 4 

options including a coded key safe and access facilitated by a 
nominated individual. 

• The benefits to CYC Home Care Services – i.e. more efficient 
service.  

 
The Executive Member queried how existing customers would be informed 
of the changes. Officers advised this would be done on a personalised 
basis by talking to each customer and assisting them to make new 
arrangements. With this assurance, the Executive Member agreed the 
recommendation. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Executive Member approved the extension of 

the current practice of non-key holding in City of York 
Council Home Care to all its customers and operates a 
range of alternative property access arrangements. 

 
REASON: The move to a completely key-less service is essential 

to the delivery of the savings and benefits arising from 
the More for York project on the Electronic Monitoring 
System for Home Care. It is essential to the ability of 
the in-house service to reduce its unit costs and 
deliver more time to work face to face with its 
customers. 

 
 

26. MEALS SERVICE IN ELDERLY PERSONS HOMES - FUTURE 
PROCUREMENT  
 
The Executive Member considered a report which sought approval to make 
changes in the provision of meals in elderly persons homes in line with the 
Council’s Sustainable Procurement Policy. 
 
Officers gave an update and advised that bringing the preparation of meals 
back into the homes would offer personalisation and provide a better 
nutritional service. They advised a plan was in place to make the shift from 
the NHS provision to home cooked meals by August 2010.   
 
The Executive Member commented that he supported the sourcing of local 
produce where possible. 

Page 4



 
RESOLVED: (i) That the Executive Member approved the proposals 

outlined in Option 2, for the eight remaining homes to 
move to home cooking for all meals of the day. 

 
REASON: To enable Managers to provide a more appropriate 

nutritionally balanced diet that will meet the needs of 
all residents in residential care homes. 

 
RESOLVED: (ii) That the Executive Member approved the proposal to 

procure bulk food items and general supplies with a 
view to procuring as much produce as locally as 
possible. 

 
REASON: To be in line with the Council’s procurement strategy 

and will fulfil the need to ensure value for money when 
purchasing basic food supplies. 

 
 

27. UPDATE ON THE ACCESS PROCEDURE FOR GAS SAFETY  
 
The Executive Member considered a report which advised of the 
successful outcome of the trial change of procedure within Housing 
Services to evaluate the potential to use the Environmental Protection Act 
1990, Schedule 3 to gain access to Council Homes to ensure that the 
Council complies with statutory duties to ensure that gas appliances within 
Council properties are serviced on an annual basis. 
 
Officers gave an update and outlined Annex B which detailed the results of 
the trial. The trial had focused on a small number of tenants that had 
repeatedly denied the Council access to their homes to carry out servicing 
of gas appliances. Officers advised that the Courts had been co-operative 
with the Council throughout the trial. It is anticipated an additional 
enforcement officer would be required to manage the additional workload. 
 
The Executive Member agreed Option 1, to adopt the new procedure. 
 
 
RESOLVED: That the Executive Member agreed Option 1, to adopt 

the new procedure as Council policy. 
 
REASON: To ensure that council tenants, residents and the 

wider community are safe and that the council fulfils its 
statutory responsibilities to annually service its 
domestic gas appliances. 

 
 
 
 
 
Cllr Morley, Executive Member 
[The meeting started at 4:00pm and finished at 4:50pm]. 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
Amended Report 

 
Decision Session of the Executive Member for Health 
and Adult Social Services 
 
 

                  27 July 2010  

Director of Adults, Children and Education 
 
 

A Joint Vision for Older People’s Health and Well Being in 
York 2010-2015 
 

Summary 
 
1. This paper seeks agreement to a joint vision for health and social care services 

in York for older people.  The vision will underpin work to develop an integrated 
approach to commissioning and service provision, across health and social care, 
as a means to ensure we can better meet the needs of our population, and 
provide services more efficiently and effectively. 

 
 
Background 
 
2.  Our Long term Commissioning Strategy for older people was agreed by 

Members in January 2007 and included a priority to establish joint commissioning 
arrangements with our health partners.   

 
3. This was driven by the messages from local and national policies, and by 

consultation with older people.  All of these emphasise the importance of 
seamless services and the need to improve health and well-being.   

 
4. Since 2007 we have worked on a number of joint projects and set up a Joint 

Commissioning Group for Adults, with representation from the Council, the 
Primary Care Trust, NHS North Yorkshire and York (NHSNYY) and York Health 
Group (YHG), the local GP Commissioning Consortium. 

 
5. The Vision has been developed through this group, with support from the 

Institute of Public Care, and funding made available by the Department of Health 
to support improvements within the Council following an inspection of Adult 
Social Care in 2007.   

 
6. The Vision has been shaped by key messages from Transforming Social Care 

LAC (DH)(2008)1, and The Darzi Review – “High Quality Care for All” 
Department of Health, July 2008.  It is influenced  by A Sure Start to Later Life: 
Ending Inequalities for Older People - A Social Exclusion Unit Final Report 2006, 
and it draws from key strategic documents from the three local partners. 

 
7. The Vision was drawn up ahead of the publication of the White Paper ‘Equity and 

excellence: Liberating the NHS’, however the contents of the vision transcend 
changing institutional confidurations, and has been developped with both primary 
care and Gp commissioners in York. 

Agenda Item 4Page 7



 
 

Consultation  
 
8. The draft vision has been reviewed by key stakeholders at two workshops.  

Representatives of York Older Peoples Assembly, the voluntary sector, York 
Foundation Hospital Trust, the PCT provider service, the Council’s care 
management and provider services and the Older People’s Champion, were all 
engaged in these workshops, and their suggestions shaped the final draft. 

 
9. This final draft has been further consulted on through the voluntary sector, the 

Older People’s Partnership Board and the Healthy City Board. 
 
10. Feedback has been positive from all directions.  There is a real wish to see the 

vision used to shape services in York for the future.  Some drafting changes have 
been incorporated into the final version attached at Annex 1.  Other comments, 
From York Older People’s Assembly, included: 

• Concern that the intentions within the Vision be translated into outcomes 
• A wish to see partnership working as the norm and not the exception 
• Agreement that avoiding duplications and waste is a prerequisite in the current 

financial environment 
• A strong view that it is essential to identify the total resources spent on older 

people within health, social care and housing agencies, and to use pooled 
budgets for example in the provision of aids and adaptations 

•  A view that the recognition given to the needs of single people living alone 
needs to be strengthened. 

 
11. The attached draft now contains more explicit reference to the needs of single 

older people within paragraph 4.5. We accept and value the feedback that has 
been provided to date. 

 
12. It is proposed that the other issues will be best addressed through the work 

currently starting to delver a joint health and social care commissioning function. 
 
 

Options 
 

13. Option 1 is to approve the Vision as the framework for future joint commissioning. 
 
14. Option 2 is not to approve the Vision but to ask for further work to be undertaken 

on any areas of concern 
 

Analysis. 
 
15. The Joint Vision is attached as Annex 1. It provides in our view, an inspiring 

description of a world where services are designed on the basis of the views of 
users of those services. Designed to retain and prioritise independence, dignity 
and choice.   

 
16. The intention for the Vision is to define overarching outcomes, which can be 

applied across health and social care provision and where those outcomes can 
only be achieved by health and social care working together.  

 

Page 8



17. Five strategic outcomes have been developed through which the vision can be 
achieved. These are; that more older people will: 
 

• Be demonstrably treated with dignity and respect. 
• Have greater involvement in family and community life. 
• Be able to achieve greater independence. 
• Report that they are able to maintain good health. 
• Remain within a home of their own. 

 
18. It is not intended that this statement covers every aspect of health and social 

care, neither should it replicate the range of statements and strategies that 
already exist. Instead, the intention is to define overarching outcomes, which can 
be applied across health and social care provision and where those outcomes 
can only be achieved by health and social care working together.  

 
19. For each of the outcomes there are a range of evidence based ‘outputs’ and 

processes described, by which the outcomes should be achieved. The outcomes 
are also accompanied by a set of principles, which can be applied, not only to the 
outputs but also to any health and social care activity.  

 
20. Each of the outcomes are based either on existing policy goals within the local 

authority or our local health community, or on research / audit evidence of need, 
and where their achievement can be measured by a set of local indicators. 

 
21. The Vision has been developed within a very clear context of increasing demand 

for services and reducing financial resources and is intended to support redesign 
and reshaping of services rather than an investment programme for additional 
services. It seeks to ensure however, that such redesign and efficiency is 
achieved not opportunistically but within the context of a clear agreed vision. 

 
22. Delivery of the Vision will be achieved through an integrated commissioning 

function.  Proposals for this are currently being worked up, and more details on 
these proposals will be available in the autumn for the Executive Member’s 
consideration.  The comments and suggestions from the York Older People’s 
Assembly will be fed into the work to establish a joint commissioning function, 
and subsequent joint commissioning plans 

 
Corporate Objectives  

23. The Vision will help to deliver the Council’s objectives in respect of: 
 

A Healthy City – we want to be a city where residents enjoy long healthy and 
independent lives.  For this to happen we will make sure people are supported to 
make healthy lifestyle choices and that health and social care services are quick 
to respond to those that need them 
 
Implications 
Financial 

24. There are no financial implications to agreeing to the Joint Vision.    
 

Human Resources (HR) 
25. There are no proposals within the Joint Vision that commit the Council to actions 

that have direct HR implications.  However, to achieve aims of the Joint Vision 
will require staff to change current practice and work in different ways with older 

Page 9



people.  Where necessary appropriate training and guidance will be provided to 
staff as required.  

 
Equalities 

26. The Joint Vision will support better outcomes and services for all equality strands 
and in particular people affected by age and disability. 

 
Legal 

27. There are no legal implications to agreeing to the Joint Vision 
 

Crime and Disorder 
28. There are no crime and disorder implications to agreeing the Joint Vision 
 

Information Technology (IT) 
29. There are no IT implications to agreeing the Joint Vision 
 

Property 
30. There are no property implications to agreeing the Joint Vision 
 

Other 
31. There are no other implications 

 

Risk Management 
 

32. The risk associated with the demands for services from an ageing population is recorded 
on the Council’s risk register.  The recommendation of this report will potentially help to 
reduce this risk.  There are no new risks associated with adoption of the Vision. 

Recommendations 
 

33. It is recommended that Option 1 is adopted: 

To approve the Vision as the framework for future joint commissioning 

 

Reasons: To ensure we can better meet the needs of our population, and provide 
services more efficiently and effectively 

 

 

Page 10



Contact Details 
 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

Kathy Clark 
 
Interim Assistant Director 
Commissioning and Partnerships 
 
Adults, Children and Education 
 
01904 554003 

Pete Dwyer 
 
Director Adults, Children and Education 
 
Report Approved � Date 14 July 2010 

    

 
Wards Affected:   All � 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Annex 
Annex 1  - The vision for older people’s health and well being in York 2010-2015 
 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



City of York, York Health Group and North Yorkshire and York PCT – The Vision for Older 
People’s Health and Well-being. 
 

 May 2010 
 

 

The vision for older people’s health and well 
being in York 2010-2015 

 

1 Introduction 

1.1 The overarching vision for older people in York, to be achieved over 
the next five years, is one where a higher proportion of older 
people remain within the community, having fewer hospital and 
care home admissions and are able to enjoy: greater 
independence; a wider choice of accommodation options; and 
greater social engagement.  

1.2 During the same time period, the deteriorating financial climate 
combined with the growth in the numbers of older people, will 
inevitably mean meeting greater demand with fewer resources.  

1.3 This makes it essential to transform the services that health and social 
care fund, to reduce demand through successful and targeted health 
and social care interventions and to avoid duplication and waste. 

1.4 If the vision is to be achieved then health commissioners and the local 
authority need to work ever more closely with each other and with 
voluntary organisations and other third sector bodies, in order to agree 
common targets for improving the health and well-being of local 
people and communities.  This will require an improved understanding 
of need, and  the ability to better define service requirements and use  
of resources.   

1.5 Five strategic outcomes have been developed through which 
the vision can be achieved. These are; that more older people 
will: 

• Be demonstrably treated with dignity and respect. 
• Have greater involvement in family and community life. 
• Be able to achieve greater independence. 
• Report that they are able to maintain good health. 
• Remain within a home of their own. 

1.6 It is not intended that this statement covers every aspect of health and 
social care, neither should it replicate the range of statements and 
strategies that already exist. Instead, the intention is to define 
overarching outcomes which can be applied across health and social 
care provision and where those outcomes can only be achieved by 
health and social care working together.  

1.7 For each of the outcomes there are a range of evidence based ‘outputs’ 
and processes described, by which the outcomes should be achieved. 
The outcomes are also accompanied by a set of principles which can be 

Page 13



City of York, York Health Group and North Yorkshire and York PCT – The Vision for Older 
People’s Health and Well-being. 
 

 May 2010 
 

applied not only to the outputs but to any health and social care 
activity.  

1.8 Each of the outcomes are based either on existing policy goals within 
the local authority or the health community or on research / audit 
evidence of need, and where their achievement can be measured by a 
set of local indicators. The final section on implementation begins to 
explore some of these issues.  

 

Page 14



City of York, York Health Group and North Yorkshire and York PCT – The Vision for Older 
People’s Health and Well-being. 
 

 May 2010 
 

2 Principles 

Below are outlined a set of principles designed to underpin the vision for older 
people in York. They are intended to be used by staff and managers in order to 
guide them in a range of situation regarding older people not just in delivering 
the specific outcomes linked to the vision statement. In this light all professionals 
are responsible for delivering all the outcomes, not just those that might be seen 
as belonging to one particular professional group. 

2.1 Together we will ensure that our services are available to all 
irrespective of gender, race, disability, age, religion or sexual 
orientation and to pay particular attention to groups or sections of 
society where improvements in health and life expectancy and quality 
of life and sense of wellbeing are not keeping pace with the rest of the 
population. 

2.2 Our services will reflect the needs and preferences of the people who 
use our services, of their families and their carers. 

2.3 We are jointly committed to providing best value for taxpayers’ money 
and the most effective and fair use of finite resources.  We should 
always ask ourselves ‘why shouldn’t we work together’ rather than 
‘should we do this together’.   

2.4 We will give the people who use our services, their carers and the 
public the opportunity to influence and scrutinise our performance and 
priorities; and people, public and staff will be involved in relevant 
decisions.  

2.5 We will expect all our staff, and staff in the services we commission, to 
deliver quality care and support.  Wherever it makes sense we will 
deliver services through integrated teams, and support staff to work 
together to create simple access to the care and support our 
customers need. 

2.6 We will work together to ensure that skill development and workforce 
planning promote quality and encourage integrated working between 
health and care services.  

 

 

Page 15



City of York, York Health Group and North Yorkshire and York PCT – The Vision for Older 
People’s Health and Well-being. 
 

 May 2010 
 

Outcomes and outputs that flow from the vision 
 

3 Outcome 1 – All older people are demonstrably treated 
with dignity and respect 

3.1 Services should only be purchased from agencies and organisations 
that have a written and verifiable policy with regard to dignity1.  

3.2 People with dementia should receive help and support from staff 
knowledgeable about their condition whether in a social care or a 
health care setting2.  

3.3 Carers of older people, particularly where they are caring for someone 
with dementia, should be offered an agreed package of support. This 
should be flexible enough to cope with unexpected changes in 
circumstances, from the point of diagnosis onwards,3 as well as 
information about the relevant condition.  

3.4 There should be an improved inter-agency response to first contact. 
For example; whoever responds to the first contact with an older 
person, should be skilled enough to find out the whole story. Sufficient 
time should also be allowed for that person to tell their story in their 
way and at their pace, and appropriate arrangements should be in 
place to allow information to be shared between agencies. 

3.5 In care settings where there is a key worker the older person should 
always be offered a choice of who that key worker is. The same should 
be true when any member of care staff is asked to carry out intimate 
personal care. 

3.6 Where older people have a terminal condition it is important that they 
die in a place of their choosing and that services work together to help 
achieve this4.  Where people indicate they wish to make ‘living wills’ 
staff should support and encourage this. Peoples wishes with regard to 
faith and beliefs should also be recorded and respected. 

 
 

 

                                       
1 Need to make sure this is included in the new home care contract and should be raised 
at the provider’s forum.  
2 Development of the Dementia psychiatric liaison service. Shared pathway of care. 
Carers passport about that person. 
3 See York Strategy for Carers 2009-2011 and Dementia Review, Nov 2008. 
4 See End of Life Strategy (under development) and  Recommendation 5, End of Life, 
Delivering Healthy Ambitions  
 

Page 16



City of York, York Health Group and North Yorkshire and York PCT – The Vision for Older 
People’s Health and Well-being. 
 

 May 2010 
 

4 Outcome 2 – More older people have greater involvement 
in family and community life 

4.1 All older people should have the opportunity, regardless of incapacity 
to engage in activities that they enjoy, whether living in their own 
homes in health care setting or in a care home5. Older peoples own 
contribution to the community through employment and work as 
volunteers should be recognised and encouraged. 

4.2 Good up to date information about the range of services and 
opportunities should be available to all older people. There should be 
an offer of  support available to those who need it, so that they can 
take up community provision rather than people simply being 
signposted to alternative services. 

4.3 The local authority and health agencies need to work together to 
understand where there are risks and barriers to older people 
participating in community life, eg, snow clearance, access to 
transport,  presence of banks and post offices, etc. Leisure services 
should ensure that there is proportionality in the activities they offer to 
ensure they are relevant to and accessible by older people. 

4.4 Funding partners need to explore investing in a programme of 
community leadership. Local existing leaders of voluntary effort should 
be encouraged and resourced to identify and deliver greater 
community support for older people6.  

4.5 The impact of living alone in older life, whether as a result of divorce, 
death, separation , or never having been in a partnership will need to 
be a consideration in reaching and finding people and in offering 
support. 

4.6 All policies of the local authority and health commissioners should 
recognise that by 2030 25% of the population of the City will be aged 
over 65. This should be reflected in the type of services and facilities 
that are available.   

 

                                       
5 See Priorities and Gaps Older Peoples Services to Promote Health and Well- Being Feb 
2009 
6 See The Westfield Project led by economic development  

Page 17



City of York, York Health Group and North Yorkshire and York PCT – The Vision for Older 
People’s Health and Well-being. 
 

 May 2010 
 

5 Outcome 3 – More older people are able to maximise their 
independence 

5.1 Older people should always be consulted about any service to be 
provided and their wishes and views ascertained. Where desired, the 
option of a personal social care budget should be offered that is 
sufficient to meet peoples assessed needs. There should be 
encouragement for older people to self manage health conditions, 
rather than allowing a potential crisis to occur7.  

5.2 There should be a greater emphasis on collecting the views of service 
users, carers and those who do not use health or care services but 
could benefit for doing so. For example, there should be a range of 
ways to collect feedback, including internet based forums for service 
users and carers to express consumer views about the care and health 
services that they receive. Such collections should avoid duplication 
across agencies and wherever possible should be combined. 

5.3 There should be an increased use of technology focussed on alleviating 
specific risks to service users. The range of technological services 
available should be explained to service users and carers. Use of 
technology should be planned and of demonstrable benefit, and should 
include opportunities for short term usage designed to improve 
independence and self care8. 

5.4 Older people should be encouraged and enabled to self manage their 
health conditions. 

5.5 Health and care assessments should have an emphasis on what people 
can do as well as what they cannot and should record activities that 
people used to participate in and why they no longer do so9. There 
should be a statement about the degree of independence and choice 
the older person would like to achieve.  

5.6 Longer term and intensive care and support should be planned and 
provided only after looking at  rehabilitation and ‘reablement’ 
opportunities, which are intended to help people regain skills and 
confidence to care for themselves.  This will include technology based 
supports.  All of which could increase independence and reduce 
reliance on care services. 

 

                                       
7 Recommendation 1 & 9, Long term conditions, Delivering Healthy Ambitions 
8 Electronic Home Care Monitoring, Blue Print for Adult Social Care Sept 2009 
9 See Priorities and Gaps Older Peoples Services to Promote Health and Well- Being Feb 
2009 

Page 18



City of York, York Health Group and North Yorkshire and York PCT – The Vision for Older 
People’s Health and Well-being. 
 

 May 2010 
 

6 Outcome 4 - More older people report that they are able to 
maintain good health  

6.1 Health and care services should proactively identify those at risk of 
hospital admissions and then act to reduce the risks.  Alternatives to 
hospital admission should be available for those who can be cared for 
outside an acute hospital setting.  This will include good care at home 
as well as care in community based units.  These options should be 
available to avoid admission and to speed up discharge 

6.2 Planning for discharges from hospital needs to improve.  An older 
person should only be discharged from hospital when it is both timely 
and safe for this to occur. Greater attention should be paid to older 
people’s confidence to manage on their own as well as their physical 
capabilities.   

6.3 Where an older person has suffered a stroke then there should be 
improved restoration of functionality and a diminution in the number of 
older people who have further strokes or TIAs. The levels of 
permanent impairment to individuals should be reduced10.  

6.4 Where older people have had a fall that has required a health service 
intervention, then they should receive a targeted falls prevention 
service. This is particularly appropriate for older people who have had 
a fall in a care homes11.  

6.5 There should be a targeted increase in the detection of continence 
problem in older people with an equivalent diminution in the proportion 
of older people with a continence problem who are catheterised or use 
pads to ‘manage’ the problem12. 

                                       
10 York hospital under achieved in terms of its 2008/09 meeting of the stroke standard 
with only 28% of stroke patients in 2008-09 spending time on a specialist stroke unit. 
Nationally a third of all patients admitted to hospital for a stroke have previously had an 
earlier stroke or a TIA. 11% go on to a care home 2% within two weeks. 
 
11 See Priorities and Gaps Older Peoples Services to Promote Health and Well- Being Feb 
2009 and York Health Group Commissioning Intentions 2009/2010 – 2010/2011. 
Nationally. 80% of hip fractures are to women. Average age is 83. The 2007 RCP Audit 
showed that 22% of all hip fractures occur in care homes.  27% of older people who have 
had a hip fracture go on to have a continence problem brought about from their hospital 
admission although in 60% of those cases no referral is made to a continence service. 
11%of patients have an unplanned re-admission to hospital within 12 weeks of their fall. 
There is a strong connection between the falls and depression, with a 30% increased risk 
of hip fracture for older women if they are suffering from depression. 
 
12 People with continence problems often suffer for years before they reveal their 
problem. Just over half of hospital sites and only a third of mental health sites offer 
structured training in continence care. Documentation of continence assessment and 
management has been described nationally as “wholly inadequate”. 90% of PCTs have a 
written policy saying continence products (pads) are supplied on the basis of clinical need 

Page 19



City of York, York Health Group and North Yorkshire and York PCT – The Vision for Older 
People’s Health and Well-being. 
 

 May 2010 
 

6.6 There is a need for improved services focusing on depression in older 
people particularly where the person has experienced the bereavement 
of a long term life partner13.    

6.7 All older people should have access to regular dental care regardless of 
where they live and their ability to access a dental surgery unaided14.  

6.8 Where older people have difficulty in cutting, or are unable to cut, their 
toenails, access to an appropriate service that can help with this 
should be made.15 

 

                                                                                                                        
yet 73% limit the number of pads to four a day. The average age of those known to the 
PCT with a continence problem was 80. 
13 The majority of older persons who commit suicide are widowed although only a small 
proportion of the oldest old have experienced the recent loss of a partner. However in 
absolute terms the oldest old men experience the highest increase in suicide risk 
immediately after the loss of a spouse.  
A comprehensive Dutch study in 2008 showed there was a link between a history of 
depression and Alzheimer’s. Amongst those who have experienced the death of a spouse 
in old age 30-60% meet major depression criteria at one month, 24-30% at two months 
and 25% at three months.  The most effective interventions at alleviating social isolation 
are group activities at a social and educational level. Individual interventions are less 
effective but work best where the giver of support is matched in terms of age and 
interests with those of the recipient. 
 
14 Older people suffer a wide number of likely additional dental problems yet conversely 
are less likely to receive treatment. For example; The Adult Dental Health Survey 2008 
for Portsmouth reviewed dental care of older people in care homes. Found that 465 had 
no teeth 73% had dentures, 24% suffered oral pain, 29% not seen a dentists in ten 
years, 25% felt they needed dental treatment tomorrow.The additional problems include 
those that stem from the type of medication being taken impacting on the capacity to 
swallow and the likelihood of introducing dental decay, through a diminution in effective 
soft tissue holding teeth in place  and  softer diets, which require minimal chewing and 
thereby reduces stimulation of muscle tone and the condition of the oral tissues. As a 
consequence, sugar is retained in the mouth for a longer period of time which promotes 
dental caries. 
 
15 Help the Aged reported in 2005 that over two thirds of older people have foot problems 
and there is some evidence that the proportion may be higher as many people are too 
embarrassed to seek help. The longer term impact of denying treatment to those 
considered to have a low risk is yet to be established although Malkin et al suggested 
that 25% of people needing foot care are not receiving it.  
 

Page 20



City of York, York Health Group and North Yorkshire and York PCT – The Vision for Older 
People’s Health and Well-being. 
 

 May 2010 
 

7 Outcome 5– More older people remain within a home of 
their own.  

7.1 There should be a continued development of a programme of extra 
care housing particularly providing a stimulus to the independent 
sector to develop provision for older owner occupiers. There is a need 
to develop ECH on a community basis rather than a just a housing 
basis, ie that people can receive the range of extra care services within 
particular given neighbourhoods16. 

7.2 There needs to be much greater clarity about who the Local Authority 
would fund in residential care and why17.  

7.3 Older people need to be assured that when it comes to hospital 
discharge they will have the opportunity to fully explore the choices 
and the implications of those choices that are available to them.  

7.4 Where aids and adaptations do not exacerbate people’s dependency 
then there should be a greater funding emphasis on providing property 
adaptations. Funding partners should also be aware of the costs and 
benefits of the adaptation programme and the impact of delays in 
delivering adaptations18. 

7.5 Over and above access to health and care provision older people’s 
confidence to remain in the community is based on their ability to 
maintain their property, play a part in their neighbourhoods and to feel 
safe. The local authority will work with a range of agencies across the 
City to ensure that these ambitions can be achieved and that older 
peoples feelings of safety and security are regularly monitored.   

 

                                       
16 This is similar to the Dutch model of integrated neighbourhoods called 
‘Woonzorgzones’. These are now being planned in about 30 neighbourhoods and villages 
all over the Netherlands. The woonzorgzones are geographical areas that offer round-
the-clock care and a certain percentage of adapted housing within 200 m walking 
distance of integrated service. 
17 The EPH review should respond to this (likely that care home provision will be seen as 
for those needing high physical care needs and dementia where people are at risk). 
18 See Priorities and Gaps Older Peoples Services to Promote Health and Well- Being Feb 
2009 

Page 21



City of York, York Health Group and North Yorkshire and York PCT – The Vision for Older 
People’s Health and Well-being. 
 

 May 2010 
 

8  Aspects of implementation 

8.1 There should be improved measurement of service success by 
outcomes rather than outputs. In achieving this the test should be who 
can provide the best outcome at the best possible price rather than 
professional groups being allowed to ‘colonise’ areas of service 
provision, ie, we are the only group who can deal with dementia, 
continence stroke etc19. 

8.2 There should be a greater capacity to monitor and measure why 
hospital admissions and care home admissions occur and those results 
fed back into the commissioning process. From this there will be an 
increased capacity to target key populations most at risk.  

8.3 In order to consolidate skills and knowledge, reduce costs and give 
service users a more consistent experience, consideration should be 
given to the balance of services necessary to achieve the outcomes 
required within the funding available.20 

8.4 There should be less repeat assessments by different professional 
groups and organisations and greater service user satisfaction with the 
assessment process. Where assessments are completed by ‘front door’ 
services they should be accompanied by good risk analysis. 

8.5 There should be a greater transferability of skills across health and 
social care. 

8.6 There should be an assumption that the delivery of a paid for care and 
health service should be a last resort. Therefore, health and care 
should look to provide greater support to family, friends and 
communities to support older people rather than fund a paid service. 
Consequently, there should be a shift in expenditure away from 
funding whole services to one of investment, wherever possible in 
supporting and extending an existing activity. A greater test of 
investment should be applied, ie, if this amount of money is spent 
what is the desired return from that expenditure and is this cost 
effective.  

8.7 Where consultation exercises are undertaken the norm should be that 
they are jointly undertaken between health services and the local 
authority unless there is a good reason for not doing so. 

 

                                       
19 Recommendation 2, Planned Care Delivering Healthy Ambitions.  
20 Improving Clarity and Efficiency of the End to End Customer Process, Blue Print for 
Adult Social Care Sept 2009. 

Page 22


	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	4 A Joint Vision for Older People's Health and Well Being in York 2010-2015
	York vision  Annex 1


